
MEMORANDUM 

TO: Town Council  

FROM: David E. Cox, Town Manager  

DATE: October 22, 2020 

SUBJECT: Agenda Information – 10/27/2020 

The following is additional or summary information regarding matters on the upcoming Town Council 
Agenda.  The numbering below follows the agenda and some routine or self-explanatory items are not 
discussed in this memo.  As you review your packet materials, please do not hesitate to contact the 
appropriate staff member or me prior to the Council meeting with any questions or concerns.  Often, 
these conversations can help staff and me be prepared for the Council meeting and be ready to facilitate 
a more productive and efficient meeting for everyone.  

5 Presentations 
5a 2020 Lake Testing and Watershed Plan Update – Representatives of Northeast Aquatics 
Research (NEAR), the Town’s limnologist, will present information on the results of various testing 
performed on the lake this summer and as it compares to previous years.  NEAR will also  update on the  
9 Elements Watershed Plan. 

8 Continued  Business 
8a Project Eligibility Application for a Water System – In follow up to the discussion from the last 
Council meeting, Council is asked to consider and authorize the submission of a Project Eligibility  
Application to the State Department of Public Health (DPH).  As noted previously, the Application is the 
first step in seeking funds through the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund and requests consideration 
of $20 million to  support preliminary and final design and construction of a system to integrate the 
Town’s two existing water systems and expand their service area to include areas around the Village 
Center and along the RT 66 corridor.  This application does not commit the Town to a project but allows 
the DPH to earmark funds for East Hampton including grant funds that may offset as much as half of this 
amount.  Work on this portion of the project would be coordinated with $250,000 in grant funds that 
were secured earlier this year, which are expected to provide for final evaluation of the existing 
situation, conceptual design of the construction project and development of more detailed budget 
figures.  As the attached memo and material indicates, responses to Council questions and other 
clarification matters have been received.  The Council is asked to authorize staff to finalize the 
application and submit it to the State Department of Public Health.  

Recommended Action: Authorize the Town Manager to finalize and submit the Project 
Eligibility Application. 



Town Council - Agenda Information – 10/27/2020 
October 22, 2020 
Page 2 

9 New Business 
9A Action Related to End of Year Budget Transfers – Finance Director Jylkka is providing 
information regarding the details of previously approved fund transfers and he and the Board of Finance 
are recommending a number of closeout transfers within the Town’s budget details to officially move 
funds within budget lines.  Item 9a1 includes information on the final transfers that were made to the 
Capital Reserve Fund in accordance with  directions in the budget resolution adopted in March 2020.  As 
the Council will recall, that resolution called for approximately $300,000 in transfers from the General 
Fund to the Capital Reserve fund and directed that the details of those transactions would be reported 
to the Council once they were complete.  No action is needed on this item.  Item 9a2 covers transfers in 
the amount of $137,702 within the Town’s budget to reflect actual expenditures in various line items.  
These actions do not increase the Town’s overall approved expenditures and only moves expenditures 
between line items.  The Board of Finance reviewed the proposed transfers at its meeting on October 19 
and recommended approval.  

Recommended Action: Approve  the End of Year Budget Transfers in the amount of 
$137,702 and authorize the Finance Director to make any additional transfers, up to $5,000 in the 
aggregate, that may be needed to close out the books for the 2019/2020 fiscal year and to report those 
additional transfers to the Board of Finance and the Town Council. 

9b Consideration of Comstock Trail Property Offer – The Council is asked to consider an offer from 
the owner of three properties on Comstock Trail.  The offer is to sell the properties to the Town for their 
assessed value, which totals $13,270.  The vacant properties are covered with conservation easements 
and are not buildable based on the presence of wetlands or watercourses on the property. 

Recommended Action: Determine whether the Town is interested in acquiring the 
properties. 

The remainder of the items are of a routine nature, in the sole purview of the Council or are 
announcements.  Please contact me or the appropriate staff member with questions or concerns. 

DC 



Town Council Special Meeting 1 10/8/2020 Minutes 

Town of East Hampton 

Town Council Special Meeting/Executive Session 

Thursday, October 8, 2020 

Town Hall 2nd Floor Meeting Room 

MINUTES 

Present: Chairman Pete Brown, Vice Chairman Dean Markham, Council Members Tim Feegel, 

Barbara Moore, Mark Philhower, and Kevin Reich and Town Manager David Cox. 

Not Present:  Derek Johnson 

Call to Order 

Chairman Brown called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. in the Town Hall 2nd Floor Meeting Room. 

Executive Session 

Strategy & Negotiation Regarding Collective Bargaining 

A motion was made by Mr. Reich, seconded by Ms. Moore, to enter Executive Session at 6:00pm 

with Town Manager David Cox, Labor Attorney Nicholas Grello, Finance Director Jeff Jylkka and 

Police Chief Dennis Woessner invited into the session.  Voted (6-0) 

Executive Session ended at 7:15pm. 

Adjournment 

A motion was made by Mr. Reich, seconded by Mr. Markham, to adjourn the meeting at 7:15pm.  

Voted (6-0) 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Cathy Sirois 

Recording Clerk 

Agenda Item 3a



Town Council Regular Meeting 1 10/13/2020 Minutes 

Town of East Hampton 

Town Council Regular Meeting 

Tuesday, October 13, 2020 

Town Hall Council Chambers and Zoom 

MINUTES 

Present: Chairman Pete Brown, Vice Chairman Dean Markham, Council Members Tim Feegel, 

Derek Johnson (via Zoom), Barbara Moore, Mark Philhower and Kevin Reich and Town Manager 

David Cox. 

Call to Order 

Chairman Brown called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

Adoption of Agenda: 

A motion was made by Ms. Moore, seconded by Mr. Reich, to adopt the agenda as written.  Voted 

(7-0) 

Approval of Minutes 

A motion was made by Mr. Johnson, seconded by Mr. Reich, to approve the minutes of the Town 

Council Special Meeting of September 22, 2020, Regular Meeting of September 22, 2020 and the 

Special Meeting of October 6, 2020 as written.  Voted (7-0) 

Public Remarks 

None 

Presentations 

None 

Bids & Contracts 

None 

Resolution/ Ordinances/ Policies/ Proclamation 

None 

Continued Business 

None 

New Business 

Approve RFP for High School Baseball Field/Track/Tennis Court 

Mr. Cox provided an overview of the RFP for the Design/Engineering Services for Exterior Athletic 

Surface Replacement & Drainage Improvements.  The plan is to utilize leftover funds from the High 

School project to fund this project. There was a question about including the Sears Park tennis courts 

as well. The bond counsel discouraged using these funds for locations other than the High School. 

A motion was made by Ms. Moore, seconded by Mr. Reich, to approve the RFP for 

Design/Engineering Services for Exterior Athletic Surface Replacement & Drainage Improvements 

as presented.  Voted (7-0) 

Agenda Item 3b



Town Council Regular Meeting 2 10/13/2020 Minutes 

Approve Water System Application 

The Council reviewed a Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Project Eligibility Application. This 

application provides eligibility only. Council members had questions on several items in the 

application.  The approval will be tabled until the next Council meeting.  Mr. Cox will review the 

items in question. 

Schedule Town Council Tour to Review Blight Issues 

The Council members would like to tour the blight issues in town.  The Town Manager’s office will 

provide members with possible dates. 

Schedule Town Council Tour of Town Hall During Operating Hours 

The Council members would like to tour the Town Hall offices during operating hours.  The Town 

Manager’s office will provide members with possible dates. 

Town Manager Report 

Mr. Cox provided an overview of the Town Manager’s Report, which will be included with the 

minutes filed in the Town Clerk’s Office.  

Appointments 

A motion was made by Ms. Moore, seconded by Mr. Philhower to appoint Ryan Baldassario to the 

Brownfields Redevelopment Agency and Paul Wisniewski to the Clean Energy Task Force.  Voted 

(7-0) 

Tax Refunds 

A motion was made by Mr. Philhower, seconded by Mr. Feegel, to approve tax refunds in the amount 

of $2,488.33.  Voted (7-0) 

Public Remarks 

None 

Communications, Correspondence & Announcement  

September Board and Commission Summary 

Council members received the September Board and Commission Summary 

The Town Hall Grand Opening and Ribbon Cutting will be held on Sunday, October 18 at 2:00pm. 

Adjournment 

A motion was made by Mr. Reich, seconded by Mr. Philhower, to adjourn the meeting at 7:30pm.  

Voted (7-0) 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Cathy Sirois 

Recording Clerk 



AIR LINE HISTORY DAY 

WHEREAS, “The Air Line” was a railroad line from New York City to Boston opened in 1873; and 

WHEREAS, the railroad has a rich history in our town, including stations in East Hampton and Cobalt; and 

WHEREAS, the Air Line State Park Trail is a much-used recreational facility benefiting town residents and 
 visitors; and 

WHEREAS, historical signage, an Eagle project of Boy Scout Troop 57, has been installed at Bishop’s Cut and the 
 Cobalt Station area of the Air Line State Park Trail to preserve the history of the railroad; and 

WHEREAS, this project will be dedicated on November 7, 2020; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, WE THE EAST HAMPTON TOWN COUNCIL, hereby proclaim that November 7, 2020 is 
Air Line History Day in the Town of East Hampton. 

EAST HAMPTON TOWN COUNCIL 

James Brown, Chairman Dean Markham, Vice Chairman 

Timothy Feegel Derek Johnson 

Barbara Moore Mark Philhower 

Kevin Reich Dated this 27th day of October 2020 

Agenda Item 7a



























Summary of Budget Transfers to the Capital Reserve Fund

On June 9, 2020 the Town Council approved budget transfers not to exceed $304,589 from
unexpended line items and that those amounts be transferred to the Capital Reserve Fund.

Department Account Amount

Legal Labor Attorney 35,000$
Assessor Full‐time wages 10,000$
Assessor Part‐time wages 1,000$
General Insurance Workers Compensation 72,000$
Employee Benefits Medical Insurance 40,000$
Contingency Contingency 20,000$
Regular Patrol Full‐time wages 25,000$
Firefighting Building Maintenance 8,500$
Firefighting Part‐time wages 4,500$
Firefighting Fire Equipment Testing 10,000$
Public Safety Dispatch Glastonbury Dispatch Fee 20,000$
Street Lighting Electricity 6,000$
Public Works Admin. Overtime wages 28,000$
Town Garage Building Maintenance 13,000$
Town Garage Cleaning Services 3,589$
Townwide Motor Fuel Motor Fuel 8,000$

TOTAL 304,589$

Agenda Item 9a(1)



Town of East Hampton Agenda Item: 6A
Fiscal Year 2019‐2020 End of Year Budget Transfers

Department Org Object Description Transfer From/To Comment

TRANSFER FROM
Legal 01040000 5330 Professional/Tech. Services 7,400$   Reduction in attorney utilization
Legal 01040000 5331 Labor Attorney 1,900$   Reduction in attorney utilization
New Town Hall 01050130 5530 Communications 10,500$                   Budgeted expenditures for 6 months. Occupied building for 1.5 months
New Town Hall 01050130 5110 Full Time Salaries 24,050$                   Budgeted expenditures for 6 months. Occupied building for 1.5 months
New Town Hall 01050130 5622 Electricity 21,000$                   Budgeted expenditures for 6 months. Occupied building for 1.5 months
Registrars 01080000 5120 Part Time/Seasonal Salaries 3,000$   Fewer referendums ‐ COVID
Registrars 01080000 5550 Printing/Binding 4,700$   Fewer referendums ‐ COVID
Registrars 01080000 5590 Other Purchased Services 5,000$   Fewer referendums ‐ COVID
Human Services 01320000 5444 Direct Assistance 3,000$   Received landlord reimbursement
Human Services 01320000 5110 Full Time Salaries 13,900$                   Directors position vacant for part of the year
Senior Center 01330000 5590 Other Purchased Services 5,000$   Special programming reduced  ‐ COVID
Senior Center 01330000 5120 Part Time/Seasonal Salaries 7,150$   Reduction in part‐time wages ‐ COVID
Town Garage 01530000 5430 Bldg & Equip Maint/Repair 3,202$   Fewer repairs than anticipated
Library 01680681 5120 Part Time/Seasonal Salaries 27,900$                   Reduction in part‐time wages ‐ COVID

137,702$                

TRANSFER TO
Fire Marshal 01220223 5530 Communications 115.00$                  
Building Department 01410000 5221 Medicare 145.00$                  
Building Department 01410000 5480 Software Maintenance Agreement 190.00$                  
Old Town Hall 01050000 5435 Refuse Removal 200.00$                  
Building Department 01410000 5438 Vehicle Repair/Maintenance 220.00$                  
Fire Marshal 01220223 5438 Vehicle Repair/Maintenance 325.00$                  
Fire Marshal 01220223 5220 Social Security 475.00$                  
Building Department 01410000 5220 Social Security 610.00$                  
Septage Disposal 01570000 5410 Public Utilities 676.00$                  
Police Patrol 01240000 5530 Communications 805.00$                  
Building Department 01410000 5130 Overtime Salaries 1,915.00$                Increased demand for service
Community Center 01670000 5430 Bldg & Equip Maint/Repair 1,915.00$                Light pole and fence repairs
Building Department 01410000 5110 Full Time Salaries 2,486.00$                Retro‐pay
Parks & Recreation 01610610 5120 Part Time/Seasonal Salaries 2,575.00$                Additional hours for cleaning at Sears Park ‐ COVID
Employee Benefits 01110000 5250 Unemployment Compensation 4,360.00$                Increase in unemployment claims ‐ COVID
Old Town Hall 01050000 5436 Water & Underground Tank Test. 4,650.00$                Budgeted expenditures from July to Dec. Occupied the building for 10.5 months
Old Town Hall 01050000 5611 Supplies/Materials/Minor Equip 4,675.00$                Budgeted expenditures from July to Dec. Occupied the building for 10.5 months
Building Department 01410000 5120 Part Time/Seasonal Salaries 5,450.00$                Increased demand for service
Old Town Hall 01050000 5622 Electricity 6,150.00$                Budgeted expenditures from July to Dec. Occupied the building for 10.5 months

Agenda Item 9a(2)



Town of East Hampton Agenda Item: 6A
Fiscal Year 2019‐2020 End of Year Budget Transfers

Department Org Object Description Transfer From/To Comment

Fire Marshal 01220223 5120 Part Time/Seasonal Salaries 7,510.00$                Increased demand for service
Old Town Hall 01050000 5430 Bldg & Equip Maint/Repair 9,160.00$                Budgeted expenditures from July to Dec. Occupied the building for 10.5 months
Town Council 01020000 5330 Professional/Tech. Services 12,900.00$              Consultant to review water system proposals
Transfer Station 01560000 5435 Refuse Removal 14,715.00$              Increase in transfer station utilization
Emergency Management 01240000 5960 Extraordinary Items 15,130.00$              COVID related expenses
Old Town Hall 01050000 5420 Cleaning Services 19,300.00$              Budgeted expenditures from July to Dec. Occupied the building for 10.5 months
Old Town Hall 01050000 5440 Rental 21,050.00$              Budgeted expenditures from July to Dec. Occupied the building for 10.5 months

137,702$                

The above transfer is needed in order to zero out departmental deficits for the fiscal year end 2019‐2020. This transfer also serves as additional communication to the Board of Finance and
Town Council as to the operational areas in the budget that were over and under spent.

Motion: To approve the above transfers for the 2019‐2020 fiscal year and authorize the Finance Director to make any additional transfers, up to $5,000 (in the aggregate), that may be needed in order 
to close out the books for the 2019‐2020 fiscal year. Further resolved that the Finance Director shall report back to the Board of Finance and the Town Council of any additional budget transfers. 

APPROVED:

BOARD OF FINANCE: 

TOWN COUNCIL:  



Agenda Item 9b























Agenda Item 12


	Eligibility Application Memo 10.21.20.pdf
	Eligibility Application Follow Up
	DWSRF Eligibility Application Revised 10.21.20.pdf
	Print Name of Person Signing
	Print Title of Person Signing
	2017-02-01 Point table for EA - MASTER fillable.pdf
	Point table






